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Gregory J. Dyson
232 N.E. Stanton Street
Portland, OR  97212
(503) 331-0374
June 12, 1997

Mr. Robert Williams
Regional Forester
Attn: 1570 Appeals
PO Box 3623
Portland, OR  97208-3623
36 CFR 215 APPEAL

Fivemile Planning Area
Dear Mr. Williams,
In accordance with 36 CFR 215, I hereby appeal the decision to implement the Fivemile Planning Area timber sale, Mt. Hood National Forest.

Title of Decision Document:  Fivemile Planning Area Environmental Assessment and Biological Evaluation. 

Description of Project:  10 million board feet of timber harvest; 1474 total acres of timber harvest; 101 acres of harvest within riparian reserves; 3 incidental spotted owl takes.
Location :  Barlow Ranger District, Mt. Hood National Forest; T 1S, R 11E, sections 21,
UŒ22, 23, 24, 25, 26, 27, 31, 34, 35, and 36; T 2S, R 11E, sections 5, 6, 7, and 8; T 2S, R 10E, sections 1 and 12; Wasco and Hood River Counties.
Date Decision Signed:  April 28, 1997.
Deciding Officer Name and Title:  Mt. Hood Forest Supervisor Roberta A. Moltzen.
I. APPELLANTS INTERESTS
I have a specific interest in this sale.  I have previously expressed my interest in this specific sale, and I have standing to appeal this decision according to 36 CFR ¿§

215.11 (a)(2).
My interest will be adversely affected by this timber sale.  I use and enjoy the
Mt. Hood National Forest, including the Fivemile area, for recreational,
educational, aesthetic and other purposes.  The value of those activities will be

irreparably damaged by this timber sale.  I have a long-standing interest in the sound
management of this area, and the right to request agency compliance with applicable
environmental laws.
II. REQUEST FOR STAY
Although an automatic stay is in effect for this sale as per 36 CFR 215.10(b), I
formally request a stay of  action on this timber sale, including sale preparation,
layout, road planning, any advertising, offering for bids, auctioning, logging, road

construction, or other site preparation by a purchaser pending the final decision on
this appeal.
A full stay is essential to prevent unnecessary expenditure of taxpayers money and to prevent irreversible environmental damage.  Without a stay, the federal government may waste taxpayer money preparing a sale that may later be canceled.  Because I intend to pursue my legal challenge to this sale with or without this stay, offering this timber sale may unnecessarily expose the government to liability and the purchaser to financial losses.
III. REQUESTED RELIEF
1.  That the decision to implement this timber sale be withdrawn. Alternatively, that an Environmental Impact Statement (EIS) be prepared, addressing the following issues explained in detail below:

- impacts to Steelhead Trout

- cumulative effects on Spotted Owls, Wolverines and Pine Martens

-  controversy with the Oregon Department of Fish & Wildlife, Wasco County Soil and Water Conservation District and the Confederated Tribes of Warm Springs over thermal cover and hydrologic recovery

- the effect of listing Fivemile Creek as Water Quality Limited by the Oregon Department of Environmental Quality

-  the effects of the sale to the Dufur municipal watershed; and that this sale be modified to meet the objections detailed below including

-  no entry into Riparian Reserves
- surveying and establishing appropriate buffers for C-3 survey and manage species - appropriate mitigation measures for Steelhead Trout

- greater retention of trees necessary to meet the Visual Quality

- Objectives of the Dufur Mill Road Scenic Viewshed

- greater retention of trees necessary to meet the Mt. Hood Plan

- requirements for thermal cover

- increasing crown closure in all units so as to meet Mt. Hood Plan requirements for hydrologic recovery.
IV. STATEMENT OF REASONS
The Sale Violates The Northwest Forest Plan By Entering Riparian Reserves and contradicting the Aquatic Conservation Strategy
.
While limited entry into Riparian Reserves is permitted by the Northwest Forest Plan, any such activity must further the Aquatic Conservation Strategy and be based on scientifically sound reasoning and fully justified and documented in a Watershed Analysis.  
The Aquatic Conservation Strategy requires that all activities:

Maintain and restore in-stream flows sufficient to create and sustain riparian, aquatic, and wetland habitats and to retain patterns of sediment, nutrient, and wood routing.  The timing, magnitude, duration and spacial distribution of peak, high, and low flows must be protected. (at B-11, #6)
The Fivemile EA states, at page 76, that Alternative 2 (the planned Alternative) will adversely affect the timing, magnitude, duration, and special distribution of peak, high, and low flows. This, and its related effect of increased stream sedimentation, violate the Aquatic Conservation Strategy, meaning any entry into Riparian Reserves is not permitted by the Northwest Forest Plan.  Moreover, a reduction of riparian buffers must be done in the context of a Watershed Analysis.  The entry into riparian areas proposed in the Fivemile EA is not supported by the findings of a Watershed Analysis.  (EA at p. 6).  The reduced buffers were apparently determined by the ID team during the planning of the Fivemile sale (EA at p. 75), again violating the Aquatic Conservation Strategy and therefore the Northwest Forest Plan.

Also, the EA does not contain information on which streams in the Fivemile area are fishbearing.  Without this, there is not enough information in the EA to either inform the public or provide the decision-maker with enough data to form a basis for determining whether the listed riparian buffers comply with the substantive requirements of the Northwest Forest Plan.  This is arbitrary and capricious decision-making
.

The Sale Violates The Northwest Forest Plan By Failing To Survey For

Survey And Manage Plant Species. 
The EA states that no surveys were conducted for C-3 survey and manage plant species.  (EA at 67-68).  This is not adequate, and it violates the Northwest Forest Plan.  For strategy 2 C-3 species, surveys must be completed prior to ground disturbing activities that will be implemented in F.Y. 1999 or later. (NWFP at C-5).  Ground disturbing activities will undoubtedly take place in the Fivemile Planning

Area later than October 1, 1998.  Therefore, surveys for all strategy 2 C-3 species must

take place in the Fivemile area.   That survey protocols are not yet completed is no justification for planning the sale without completing the required surveys.  Nowhere does the Northwest Forest Plan create an exception to the survey and manage requirements if protocols are not yet developed.  The only action the lack of survey protocols can justify is a delay until the protocols are finalized.  To proceed without the C-3 surveys is a blatant violation of the Northwest Forest Plan.
The Sale Violates The Northwest Forest Plan By Failing To Address

Mitigation Measures For The Steelhead Trout. 
The mitigation measures for Steelhead Trout described in Appendix J2 of the Northwest Forest Plan (at 449) are not discussed in the Fivemile EA.  The mitigation measures for Steelhead include removing Tier 1 watersheds (the entire Fivemile area) from the suitable timber base, and prohibiting new road construction (2.4 miles of roads are proposed under Alternative 2).  Steelhead are present within the Fivemile area (EA at p. 64). Moreover, given that the Steelhead is likely headed for listing under the Endangered Species Act, an EIS should be prepared on the Fivemile sale so that the impacts of the sale on the Steelhead can be fully addressed.  (40 CFR ¿§  1508.27(b)(9)).

The Sale Violates The Mt. Hood Plan By Failing To Adequately Discuss The Visual Quality Objective  (VQO) Requirements.

A portion of the sale area falls in the Dufur Mill Road designated viewshed. 

(MHP at 4-110, EA at 2).  The discussion in the EA of the VQO is incomplete and contradictory.   
The EA states, at p. 4, that the viewshed  has natural appearing forest with little evidence of human activity . . . The landscape meets the [VQO] of Partial Retention as seen from Road 44, Flag Point Lookout, and Fivemile Butte Lookout.
 Later, at p. 70, the EA reads: The overall existing scenic integrity of the Fivemile subwatershed is considered Very Low . . . Fivemile Butte Lookout has an industrial appearance.”

According to the Mt. Hood Plan the requirements of this scenic viewshed are Foreground Retention, Middleground Partial Retention, and Background Partial Retention.  The standards of Retention and Partial Retention have specific visual disturbance thresholds of 8% and 16%, respectively (FW-564, FW-565).  Nowhere in the EA are the these specifics discussed.  Thus there is not sufficient information in the EA to either inform the public or provide the decision-maker with enough data to form a basis for determining whether her decision complied with the substantive requirements of the Mt. Hood Plan.  This is arbitrary and capricious decision making.

The EA Violates NEPA By Failing To Address Significant Cumulative Impacts. 
The EA fails anywhere to address the cumulative effects of the Fivemile sale. 

Yet, these cumulative effects are significant: The sale includes the incidental take of 3 spotted owl activity centers.  (EA at 46).  The effect of so many incidental takes in one area must be addressed in relation to other incidental takes within the entire district. 

What may be incidental on a small scale will eventually have significant effects on a large scale.  Moreover, there is no planning for future monitoring of the spotted owls in the Fivemile area.  Without such monitoring, the cumulative effects cannot even be determined. The same can be said for Wolverine and Pine Marten habitat.  Use of the Fivemile area by these animals is suspected.  (EA at 59, Appendix A to Decision Notice, at A-8).  In fact, under the Mt. Hood Plan, there were several Pine Marten habitat areas set aside.  Especially for theWolverine, a cumulative effects analysis is extremely important due to use of huge areas and its reclusive nature. Thus an EIS is required.  (40 CFR ¿§ 1508.27(b)(7)).

The EA Violates The Mt. Hood Plan By Making Unsupported Departures

From The Mt. Hood Plan 
In several sections, the EA justifies significant departures from the Mt. Hood Plan by stating that the Fivemile area is more similar to eastside forests than it is to the rest of the Mt. Hood National Forest.  (See the discussion of watershed impact areas at EA p. 10, and thermal cover at EA p. 11).  This summary conclusion is not backed up by any scientific evidence whatsoever.  Without the necessary supporting

scientific evidence (see MHP at Four-45), there is not sufficient information in the

EA to either inform the public or provide the decision-maker with enough data to

form a basis for determining whether departures from the Mt. Hood Plan are

warranted.  This is arbitrary and capricious decision-making.

The Failure To Draft An EIS, Rather Than An EA, Violates NEPA, As There

Is Controversy With This Sale.
 The regulations for implementing NEPA require an EIS to be created when there is controversy with the given project.  (40 CFR ¿§

 1508.27(b)(4)).  There is controversy with the Fivemile sale as several government agencies have questioned substantial facets of the sale. Oregon Department of Fish & Wildlife has questioned the calculation of thermal cover.  The standard for optimal and thermal cover is 70% crown closure.  (EA at p. 10).  However, the Fivemile EA states that areas with marginal thermal cover (crown closure of 40-69%) will be used to determine total thermal cover.  ODFW has taken exception to this method of calculating thermal cover, as anything less than 70% crown closure will not provide the required snow intercept.  (See Appendix A to the Decision Notice, at A-1).

Additionally, both the Wasco County Soil and Water Conservation District and the Confederated Tribes of Warm Springs have questions the hydrologic recovery in the sale area.  (EA at p. 15).  When controversies such as these exist, an EIS is required.

The EA Violates The Mt. Hood Plan By Ignoring Mandatory Requirements For Watershed Impact Area Thresholds.

The EA contains a discussion which claims to justify reduced canopy closures used for calculating hydrologically impact areas.  While there may be some leeway in the Mt. Hood Plan for determining the appropriate crown closure for a certain hydrological recovery area (EA at p. 10), there is no leeway in determining the total threshold level of hydrologically impacted areas within the watershed.  That level is mandatory level of 35% maximum of hydrologically impacted areas (FW-063). 

The Fivemile subwatershed is a Special Emphasis Watershed, with an even lower

threshold of 25% for hydrologically impacted areas (FW-065). Even with the reduced canopy closure calculations, the vast majority of the Fivemile area will exceed the threshold for hydrologically impacted areas.  (EA at 46, 49).  This action violates the Mt. Hood Forest Plan. 
The Fivemile EA Violates NEPA by failing to address new information. 
The Fivemile watershed is listed as  Water Quality Limited by the Oregon Department of Environmental Quality (DEQ).  The EA fails to mention this.  Additionally, the DEQ should have been consulted on the Fivemile sale, prior to by any documentation being prepared.  Since the DEQ was not consulted (EA at 121), the EA could not contain any water quality issues raised by the DEQ. This Water Quality Limited listing is new information which justifies the preparation of an EIS.  (40 CFR ¿§

 1502.9(c)(1)(ii)).

Also, without this information, there is not sufficient information in the EA to either inform the public or provide the decision-maker with enough data to form a basis for determining whether her decision complied with the substantive legal requirements.  This is arbitrary and capricious decision-making.

The EA Violates NEPA By Failing To Fully Address The Degree To Which

The Sale Affects Public Health.

The Fivemile watershed was formerly used by the city of Dufur for its municipal drinking water supply.  Dufur was forced to switch to wells when water quality in Fivemile Creek got so bad the water needed filtering.  However, Dufur still has the same water rights to the Fivemile Creek as it had when it was using the water.  Given Oregon's growth, it is likely that Dufur will need to re-establish Fivemile Creek as its water supply at some time in the not-so-distant future. The EA does not address this issue at all, which is a violation of NEPA in itself.  And, given the substantial impacts of drinking water issues, the failure to prepare an EIS also violates NEPA.  (Ã

40 CFR ¿  1508.27(b)(2)).

V.  CONCLUSION

For these reasons I request that the decision to implement this sale be

withdrawn, or, alternatively, that an EIS be prepared and the sale modified to meet

the issues raised above.

Sincerely,

Gregory J. Dyson
� Northwest Forest Plan refers to the Record of Decision and Standards and Guidelines for Amendments to USFS and BLM Planning Documents Within the Range of the Northern Spotted Owl,and Standards and Guidelines for Management of Late-Successional and Old-Growth Forest Related Species Within the Range of the Northern Spotted Owl, 1994.  Many of the proposed riparian buffers are more narrow than those prescribed


by the Northwest Forest Plan (at C-30).  





� Mt. Hood Plan refers to the Land and Resource Management Plan, Mt. Hood National


Forest, 1990  





